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Criminal lawSubsection of 69 Cr C.Prosecution of common

purpose by several personsPolice officers attempting to effect arrest

of person charged with con.s piracyFiring almost simultaneous by

three of them while in pursuit of the latterOnly one shot causing

deathTwo officers charged with manslaughter under subs 2Ver-
diet of guilty affirmed by majority of appellate courtWhether evi

dence sufficient to justify such findingDirection by trial judge that

subs appliedMisdirection rendering verdict defective and void

New trial ordered by dissenting judgmentsPower of this Court on

appealNot limited to opinion expressed by dissentAcquittal of

accused can be pronounced by this CourtGranting of new trial may
place accused second time in jeopardyJurisdictionGrounds of

dissentThis Court justified to look into reasons for judgment of

dissenting judges of appellate court

The appellants members of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police had

on May 1944 together with another constable by the name of

Massicotte and corporal DubØ who was in charge gone to the village

of St Lambert situated at some thirty miles from the city of Quebec
for the purpose of apprehending one Georges GuØnette wanted on

charge of having conspired with others to assist one Plante to escape

from the custody of peace officer some ten or more attempts hav

ing previously been made These constables and three others had

made on the same day an earlier trip and after having searched

the premises of GuØnettes father unsuccessfully decided to return

to their headquarters in the city of Quebec After proceeding some

distance the four abovenamed constables turned about and went

back to St Lambert on the chance that GuØnette might have

returned to his fathers house thinking that the coast was clear

Corporal DubØ stationed the appellant Lizotte and Massicotte out

side the house while he himself entered it followed by the appel

lant Savard While so engaged Dubes attention was attracted by

sound upstairs and he went up just in time to see GuØnette jump

from window Savard immediately ran from the house in pursuit

of Gunette and seeing he was losing ground and as GuØnebte

ignored his calls to stop he fired four shots in the air from his

revolver As GuØnette still paid no attention Savard lowered his

revolver toward point approximately so he says six feet to the

left of GuØnette so that the latter would not only hear the bullet

but see the spurt of the ground where it hit As Savard fired this

fifth shot GuØnette was in the act of jumping fence at distance

of more than two hundred feet from the house and as he reached the
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other side he appeared to bend forward with the left hand resting 1945

on the fence and the right hand on the ground He then straight-

ened himself and ran for distance of approximately seventy-eight

feet where he stumbled and fell face down According to medical

evidence he was then dead or died very shortly thereafter The THE KING

appellant Lizotte and Massicotte also ran in pursuit of GuØnette

Lizotte firing one shot in the air and second one toward point

he says some thirty feet to GuØnettes right and Massicotte also

firing one shot in GuØnettes direction The indictment charged

that the appellants have together and illegally inflicted corporal

wounds which oaused the death of GuØnette thus committing

manslaughter In view of the uncertainty as to the identity of the

person who had fired the fatal shot only one bullet hit GuØnette

counsel for the Crown at the opening of the trial declared expressly

that the case fell within the provisions of subsection of 69

Cr and they submitted to the jury that the appellants had

formed common intention to bring about the arrest of GuØnette

by any means that such intention involved an unlawful purpose

namely the use of force beyond the limits permitted by section 43

Cr that each of the appellants was an accomplice in the com
mission of crime by one or the other and that it was immaterial

which of them actually fired the fatal shot as the death of GuØnette

was or ought to have been known to each of them to have been

probable consequence Counsel for the Crown further submitted

that the common wrongful intention originated from the acts of the

appellants and their companions and the incidents occurring dur

ing their trip which showed fixed purpose to use more violence

than necessary to bake GuØnette into custody or that the common
intent started to be illegal at the moment of the simultaneous firing

by the appellants and Massicotte The trial judge after having

read subsection of section 69 Cr charged the jury in so many
words that it applied be also stated that there was no illegality

attaching to the appellants conduct prior to the moment of the

firing but that the illegality then started if the jury was of the

opinion that they had then used undue violence 43 Cr C.
The appellants were found guilty and condemned respectively to

twelve and nine months imprisonment The conviction was

affirmed by majority of the appellate court the two dissenting

judges being of the opinion that new trial should be granted

Held that the appeal should be allowed the convictions quashed and

the appellants be discharged There is no evidence upon whidh

finding could be made that the appellants formed at any time

common wrongful intention as required by subsection of section

69 Cr C.Moreover the erroneous directions given by the trial

judge have necessarily influenced the jurys minds and have totally

rendered defective and void the conclusion they have reached

Their verdict being thus illegal must be quashed

Counsel for the Crown also contended that if the verdict was held

to be illegal the only remedy this Court could grant would be an

order for new trial as the Court could not go beyond what was

directed by the dissenting judgments the appellants could then be

proceeded against individually under subsection of section 69

Cr or additional evidence might he forthcoming which would

make subsection applicable



22 SUPREME COURT OF OANADA

1945 Held that in case like the present such an order ought not to be

made so as to permit an entirely new case to be made against the

SARD
AND

appellants While the existence of dissent on question of law

1023 Cr condition precedent for an appeal tlhis

THE KING Court the Court once seized of the appeal is not limited to the

remedy considered appropriate in the dissent but has complete

jurisdiction to direct the remedy which in its opinion the Court

appealed from ought to have granted 1024 Cr C. Under the

circumstances of the case and in view of the manner the case was

deliberately proceeded with by the Crown the granting of new

trial would violate the fundamental right of an accused not to be

placed for second time in jeopardy Manchuk the King

S.C.R 341 and Wexier The King S.C.R 350 foIl

Per The Chief Justice and Kerwin and Taechereau JJ The Supreme

Court of Canada when given jurisdiotion to entertain an appeal on

any question of law on which there has been dissent in the court of

appeal section 1023 Cr is justified whether grounds of dissent

are apecifled or not in the formal judgment of that oourt to look into

the reasons for judgment of the dissenting judges in order to find

the grounds of dissent.Reinblatt The King 1933 S.C.R 694

foll

APPEAL by the appellants from judgment by

majority of the Court of Kings Bench appeal side prov

ince of Quebec affirming verdict of guilty rendered by

jury in trial of manslaughter the dissenting judg

ments ordering new trial

The material facts of the case and the questions at issue

are stated in the above headnote and in the judgments now

reported

Lucien Gendron K.C Gerald Fauteux K.C and Mark

Drouin K.C for the appellants

Antoine Rivard K.C and Noel Dorion K.C for the respon

dent

The judgment of The Chief Justice and of Kerwin and

Taschereau JJ was delivered by

TASCHEREAU Les appelants Fernand Savard et Roger

Lizotte tous deux de la Gendarmerie Royale canadienne

ont ØtØ traduits devant la Cour dAssises QuØbec pour

rØpondre laccusation davoir

ensemble il.ligalement cause des lesions corporelles qui ont eatraInØ la

mort de Georges GuØnette commettant par là un crime dhomicide invo

lonbaire manslaughter
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TrouvØs coupables ils furent condamnØs respectivement 1945

douze et neuf mois de prison et ce verdict du jury fut SAY AND

confirmØ par Ia Cour du Banc du Roi MM les juges
Ljzoire

Francceur et Stuart McDoi gall qui Øtaient dissidents THE KING

auraient accordØ un nouveau procŁs mhau
Dans le jugement formel de la Cour du Banc du Roi

la dissidence de le juge Francur est exprimØe dans les

termes suivants
Admission au cours dii procŁs de preuve illØgale

Direction erronØe en droit sur linterprØtation de larticle 69 du

Code Criminel

Et celle dc le juge McDougall se lit ainsi
that

the accused were deprived of their right to halIenge peremp

torily the number of jurors lowed by Inw
that the presiding judge committed an error in law in instruct

ing the jury that subsection of section 69 of the Criminal

Code applied

that the presiding judge further erred in law in instructing the

jury that evidence declared by him to be irrelevant as to the

guilt of the accused would be ielpful and could be accepted

by th jury to indicate an atmosphere or climat special

surrounding the actions of the accused

Ces deux mŒmes juges de la Cour du Bane du Roi dams

leurs raisons oü cette Cour peut Øgalement chercher des

motifs de dissidence en sont Øgalement venus ia conclu

sion quil ny aucune preuve qui puisse justifier lapplica

tion de larticle 69 paragraphe Code Criminel

Georges GuØnette Roland Fontaine et Edouard Bernard

Øtaient tons trois accuses davoir conspire ensemble afln de

faire evader un nommØ HervØ Plante dØtenu par Gordon

Coutu qui avait antØrieurement procØdØ son arresta

tion Le mandat avait ØtØØmispar le juge Laetare Roy
de la Cour des Sessions de la Paix QuØbec le mars

1943 mais le mai 1944 ii navait pas encore ØtØ exØcutØ

Durant au delà de 14 mois les prØvenus avaient rØussi

dØpister les policiers qui avaient fait plus de dix voyages

St-Lambert dans le comtØ de Levis mais chaque fois

leurs recherches Øtaient derneurØes infruotueuses

Dans laprŁs-midi du mai 1944 le caporal Turgeon en
charge du dØtachement de la Gendarmerie Royale QuØ
bec dØcida de faire une nouvelie tentative afin dopØrer

ces arrestations Ii donna instruction au constable DubØ

accompagnØ de six constbies dont les appeiants de se
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1945 rendre St-Lambert et cest au cours de leurs recherches

SAvABDAI4D que Georges GuØnette fut tue dune balie de revolver Et

LIZOT1E comme consequence de cette tragØdie Savard et Lizotte fu

THE KncG rent accuses dhomicide involontaire coupabie

Tasehereau Durant cet-te nuit du au mai les constables firent deux

autres voyages St-Lambert Quelques incidents qui se

produisirent au cours du premier doivent nØcessairement

ŒtrementionnØs car ii en sera question plus loin lorsque

nous examinerons certains aspects lØgaux de la cause que

les parties ont discutØs au cours de laudition

En arrivant St-Lambert DubØ aperçut une automobile

qui iflait vers -lautre extrØmitØ du village dans la direction

de St-Isidore Croyaæt que cette voiture pouvait Œtreoc

cupØe par les trois personnes recherchØes ii la suivit mais

aprŁs sŒtre rendu compte que les passagers nØtaient pas

ceux quil dØsirait apprehender II leur permit de conti

nuer ieur route Mais la preuve rØvŁle quavant de leur

donner cette autorisation iun des constables non identiflØ

dans lautomobile de DubØ aurait dit aux passagers parmi

lesquels se trouvait un nommØ Baillargeon Si vous

naviez pas .arrŒtØ nous aurions tire

Lorsque DubØ revint avec ses deux compagnons au vil

lage de St-Lambert ii donna instruction trois constables

Lizotte Desjardins et Emond de se rendre chez Fontaine

et Edouard Bernard tous deux Øgaiement recherchØs pen
dant que lui-mŒme avec dautres iraient chez GuØnette

Chez Fontaine lun des constables serait entrØ dans la

chambre de mademoiselle Jeannette Fontaine et lui au

rait dit Je regrette de vous dØranger Elle aurait rØ

pondu d-aprŁs son tØmoignage Vous vous fatiguez en

core pour rien ce matin Et ce mŒme constable aurait

rØpondu son tour Vous croyez que nous nous fatiguons

pour rien peut-Œtre que dautres seront fatigues avant

longtemps

Durant ce temps les autres constables qui nØtaient pas

allØs chez Fontaine firent des recherches dans la maison

de GuØnette et dans les environs DubØ rapporte quaprŁs

quil eü-t fouiilØ en vain la maison le pŁre GuØnette iui

dit quil navait pas vu son fils depuis quinze jours quil

venait rarement la maison quii avait perdu toute influen

ce sur lui et quil Øtait bien dØcidØ ne pas Œtrepris vivant
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DubØ dØcida alors de retourner QuØbec mais la sortie 1945

de la maison de Guenette ii rencontra le constable Massi- SAvABD AND

cotte qui au second Øtage de la grange de GuØnette avait Lizorr

trouvØ une couverture et un oreiller Ii sØtait rendu THE KING

compte que ce lit improvise avit ØtØ rØcemmentOCCU Taschereau

car ioreiller Øtait encore chaud On fit alors dautres re-

cherches dans la direction de la riviŁre ChaudiŁre mais

sans rØsultat

Au cours du voyage de retour vers QuØbec DubØ savisa

de revenir La maison de GuØnette accompagnØ de trois

constables Massicotte Savard et Lizotte tandis que les

autres devaient continuer leur route vers la yule En arri

vant St-Lambert ii plaça ses hommes des points stra

tØgiques autour de la maison de GuØnette pØnØtra lui

mŒmeet demanda au pŁre GuØnette si son fils Øtait revenu

Cest ce moment quil entendit un bruit provenant de

lØtage supØrieur on ii monta et vit Georges GuØnette
lhomme qui recherchait sautant par une fenŒtre du
côtØ ouest de la maison Massicotte Savard et Lizotte

partirent alors sa poursuite vers la riviŁre oi les consta

bles lors de leur visite prØcØdente avaient remarquØ des

embarcations

GuØnette qrn avait une avance denviron cinquante

pieds et qui gagnait toujours du terrain refusa de sarrŒter

malgrØ les ordres quon lui intimait continua sa course

travers le champ fraIchement labourØ et sauta la cloture

en posant la main gauche de sorte quii avait les pieds

dans une position horizontale la droite de son corps
Savard Øtait au centre derriere lui II avait Lizotte sa

droite place dans le chemin Brochu et Massicotte sa

gauche Cest pendant cette course que les trois consta
bles firent feu Savard tira cinq coups de son revolver 45
Massicotte un seul dun revolver ide mŒrne calibre et Li
zotte deux coups dun revolver 38 Tous claprŁs leurs tØ

moignages tirCrent en lair sauf Savard et Lizotte qui tire-

rent chacun un coup vers le sol mais côtØ de GuØnette
afin dc limpressionner davantage et le convaincre quil
Øtait prØfØrabie de se rendre

AprŁs avoir sautØ cette clOture situØe 225 pieds de sa

residence GuCnette parcourut encore 78 pieds et là apr
avoir fait une hesitation il tomba la face contre terre La
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1945 preuve mØdicale rØvŁle quil dot mourir ce moment ou

SAVARD AND quelques instants plus tard La balle qui avait pØnØtrØ
LIZOTTE au dessus du rein gauche Øtait sortie dans la region du

THE KING poumon droit Le docteur Gilbert de Charny ie premier

Tachereau qui constata la mort exprima lopinioii que ia balle de
vait provenir dun revolver calibre 38 car cette derniŁre

pouvait Œtre introduite 1us facilement dans loriflce de

blessure Cependant cette prØtention nest pas admise

par lun des mØdecins de la Couronne

Ce rØsumØ de la preuve peut-Œtre trop long est cepen
dant nØcessaire pour bien situer le litige et pour determiner

les questions iØgaes qui nous sont actueliernent soumises

et que lon trouve dans le jugement formel de la Cour du

Banc du Roi et les raisons Øcrities des juges dissidents

La Couronne fait reposer sa cause devant le jury sur

le paragraphe de lwrticle 69 du Code Criminel Cest

aussi la directive donnØe par le juge prØsidant le procŁs

Cet article se lit ainsi

69 Quand piusieurs personnes forment ensemble le projet de

faire quelque chose dillØgal et de sentraider dans oe projet chacune

deIes est complice de toute infraction commise par 1une dentre elies dans

Ia poorsuite de leur but commun si elles savaient ou devaient savoir que

Ia commission de cette infraction devait Œtre la consequence probable de

Ia poursuite de leur but commun

Une seule balle frappØ GuØnette et comme ii Øtait

assez problØmatiquede dire qui avait tire cette balie on

voulu par le jeu de larticle 69 paragraphe faire dispa

raItre cette difficultØ de lesprit du jury en leur disant

que les accuses faisaient partie dun complot illegal que

chacun deux Øtait complice dune infraction commise par

lun ou lautre des constables et quil Øtait en consequence

immatØriel de determiner qui avait tire le coup fatal

Au cours du procŁs qui eut lieu QuØbec le procureur

de la Couronne expliquant la cause au jury fit un rØsumØ

de la preuve quii dØsirait lui sournettre et lui dit
Vous urez jilger messieurs les jurØs si les deux agents nØtaient

pas alors engages dans la poursuite de buts illegaux larrestation de

GuØnette sans mandat enbre leurs mains et le recours des moyens aussi

radicaux pour iexŒcution de leur mission Dans laffirmative Ia Couronne

vous soumettra quen droit les deux accuses doivent rØpondre de la naort

de GuØnette
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Plus tard lorsque la preuve de la Couronne fut terminØe 1945

ia defense prØsenta une motion de non-lieu de part de SAVARD AND

laccusØ Lizotte et dans la rØplique de de la Cou- LIZOTE

ronne on trouve ce qui suit THE KING

lies jurØs dØcideron.t si un moment donnØ cette expØditdon qui
Tasehereau

pu paraitre commencØe avec des buts legaux est devenue une expedition

illØgale

la conciusion dii procŁs lors de sa plaidoirie au jury

lun des avocats de la Couronne sexprima ainsi

Cest que cette loi ØtØ faite prØcisØment pour prØvoir de ces cas

comme celui qui nous occupe actuellernent lorsquune deux trois ou

quatre personnes ensemble dans un mŒme but commettent des actes

illØgaux us sont tous ensemble respon.sables des consequences et cest

pour cela quil importe peu de savoir .si cest la balle de Lizotte ou de

Savard qui toe

Ce quil importe de savoir cest si ces deux-là ou ces trois-1à ou

quatre-là ensemble ne sØtaient pas rØunis pour faire de la poursuite

de GuØnette une operation qui est devenue illØgele du moment oü us

oat commence tirer GuØnette ne serait pas mort aujourdhui

Ce nest pas ensemble quils ont tire Cest parce quensemble us ont

pris des moyens illØgaux pour arriver leur fin avec illØgalitØ que larticle

69 paragraphe trouve son application

Et plus twrd un second avocat de la Couronne dit

son tour
Linvention de Lizotte pour essayer de chereher ailleurs le ooupable

est une invention qui ne .tient pas debout dautant plus que mŒme
si cØtait vrai ces dŁux personnes Øtaient engagØes dens La poursuite de

moyens communs qui Øtaient des moyens illØgaux et au mŒme titre que

celui qui aurait vraisemblablement tire iii sont coupables de man
slaughter us sont coupables de la mort quon leur impute de Gunette

Et dans son adresse au jury le juge donne la direction

lØgale suivante

Larticle 69 paragraphe sapplique Je laffirine et jy reviendrai

plus tard

Ailleurs il dit

Devez-vous trouver une difference de responsabilitØ entre laccusØ

Savard et entre laccusØ Lizotte si vous en venez un reerdict de cul

pabilitØ

Et aprŁs avoir cite larticie 69 paragraphe du Code

Criminel lhonorable juge continue
Me Gendron soutient que cet article ne sapplique pas Maiheureuse

ment je ne puis partager son opinion Le paragraphe sapplique

LillØgalitØ commença au moment oi us es accuses et le constable Massi

cotte se mirent ensemble tirer dans la poursuite de leur but commun
contrairement La loi Si vous jugez quils abusŁrent de Ia violence

Lentente est devenue ills gale au cours de lexØcution tousjours si les

accuses excØdŁrent daprŁs vous les moyens raisonnables et causŁrent la

saortrticle 43 Cr
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1945 DaprŁs ces textes que je viens de citer les constables

SAVARD AND poursuivaient done des huts i4lØgaux leur expedition qui

LIZOTTE
lorigine pu paraItre lØgale serait devenue une expØdi

Thn KING tion illØgale au moment oü les deux appelants et Massi

Taschereau
cotte ont commence tirer Comme consequence en verbu

des dispositions de larticie 69 paragraphe tous ceux qui

ont fait feu sont coupabies au mŒrne clegrØ quel que soit

celui qui ait tue GuØnette Cest bien là la thØorie de la

Couronne admise par le juge au cours du procŁs

Pour que larticle 69 paragraphe sapplique II faut

de toute nØcessitØ quil ait entente de poursuivre un but

illegal Cest lØlØmentessentiel qui entraInera la culpabii

tØ de tous Si iun deux commet une infraction dans la

poursuite de ce but

Or II importe done de se demander quel projet illegal

avaient concu les accuses quel acte dØfendu par la loi ils

avaient projetØ de poser oii quand et comment ils se sont

concertØs pour quiis tombent sous le coup de larticle que

je viens de citer

Lors de laudition de Ia cause devant cette Cour Ic pro
cureur de la Couronne tentØ dØtablir que le projet de

commettre un acte illegal nØtait pas nØcessairement nØ

sur le terrain de GuØnette au moment oi les constables ont

commence faire feu mais que les actes des appelants et

de leurs compagnons au cours du trajet de QuØbec St

Lambert dØmontraient lintention bien arrŒtØe duser de

plus de violence quil nØtait nØcessaire pour procØder

larrestation de GuØnette Ii aurait donc eu compiot de

commettre un acte illegal et lillØgalitØ dc cet acte consis

terait dans la violation de larticle 43 dii Code Criminel

qui se lit ainsi

43 Tout individu qui opŁre lØgalement 1ajrestiation dun autre pour

qucique cause autre quune infraction memtionnØe en Particle qui prØcŁde

est justifiable si celui quil cherche arrŒter tente de se soustraire par la

fuite cette arrestation demployor la force nØcessaire pour empŒcher son

evasion sauf si cette evasion peut Œtre empŒchØe par des moyens raisonna

bies sans recourir Ia violence mais cette force ne doit Œtre destinØe

ni de nature causer la mort ou des lesions corporelles graves

Cette prØtention doit Œtre rejetØe pour deux raisons

La premiere cest quelle na jamais ØtØ soumise au jury

qui na pas eu se prononcer sur ce point ct qui en ØtØ

empŒchØpar les directives mŒmes du juge qui iui dit

que lilØgalitØ avait commence au moment mŒme oà les
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coups de feu ont ØtØ tires La seconde raison qui motive 1945

le rejet de cette prØtention cest quil ny aucune preuve SAVARD AND

au dossier qui puisse justifier un jury instruit de ses de-
LIZOTTE

voirs den arriver lØgalement une semblable conclusion THE KING

Pour essayer dØtablir linten.tion commune des consta- Taschereau

hies de faire usage dune force plus que nØcessaire on

invoqu6 lincident qui est arrivØ iorsquun constable aurait

dit aux passagers de lautomobile Bailiargeon Si vous

naviez pas arrŒtØ nous aurions tire Et on relevØ aussi

Ia conversation entre le constable non identiflØ qui aurait

dit mademoiselle Fontaine

Voua croyez que bus nous fatiguons pour .rien peut-Œtre que dau
tres serout fatigues avant longtemps

Ces faits ne sont pas pertinents la cause et leur rØcit

devant le jury Øtait inadmissible Ces paroles ont ØtØ pro
noncØes hors la presence des accuses et ne peuvent en au
cune façon servir de preuve contre eux

Je nignore pas que lorsquil sagit de conspiration des

declarations faites par lun des conspirateurs hors Ia prØ
sence des autres peuvent en certains cas servir de preuve
contre tous les conspirateurs mais encore faut-il quiil

existe quelque connexitØ entre ces declarations et la pour-

suite du but commun qui dans le cas actuel aurait conduit

Ia mort de GuØnette De plus cette rŁgle que je viens

de citer et qui dans notre droit constitue une exception

est basØe sur la thØorie qui veut que dans le cas de conspi

ration vu quil unite de volontØ la declaration de lun

est censØe Œtre la declaration de tous Pour que la lØclara

tion de lun puisse ainsi servir contre les autres il faut dons

prouver par des preuves additionnelles que celui contre qui

on veut sen servir Øtait partie au complot Cette autre

preuve dans le cas present fait totalement dØfaut

Ces deux faits sont les seuls que ia Couronne invoquØs

pour dØmontrer lexist.ence dun complot antØrieur Il me
semble quelle fai1l dans sa tentative de convaincre la

Cour de lexistence de cette entente prØalable de commet
tre un acte illegal

Dailleurs dans sa charge au jury le juge dit que le

tØmoignage de Baillargeon ne pouvait pas incriminer les

deux accuses et ii aussi ajoutØ que le tØmoignage de

mademoiselle Fontaine ne pouvait pas non plus avoir
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1945 dinfluence sur la cause Ii cependant autorisØ le jury

SAVARD AND prendre connaissance de la declaration faite Bailar
LIZOTTE

geon non pas parce quelle peut relier les accuses la

THE KING tragØdie qui est arrivØe mais seulement afin de Se mettre

Taschereau dans une atmosphere ou un climat special Si je maccorde

avec le juge quand ii dit que la preuve de ces deux incidents

ne peut incriminer les deux accuses je diffŁre entiŁrement

dopinion avec lui quant sa seconde remarque La preuve

est pertinente ou non Oomme elle ne lest pas elle nau
rait pas di Œtre soumise au jury et encore moms pour le

justifier au cours dun procs criminel de se placer dans un

climat special ce qui mon sens constitue une nouvelle

et bien Øtonnante thØorie

La çouronne elle-mŒme ne semble pas cónvaincue de

lºxistence de ce plan prØconcu par les constables pour

faire usage dune violence dØraisonnable car elle dit dans

son factum

The expedition was without any doubt legal in its purpose etc

Et le juge dit au jury
Lentte est devenue illØgale au cours de lexØcution

Evidernment le but de cette expedition Øtait legal On

se rendait St-Lambert pour executer le mandat Ømis con

tre GuØnette et les autres par le juge Letare Roy
Rien dans la preuve ne peut laisser supposer que les consta

bles aient eu des intentions criminelles quils aient voulu

faire autre chose quc de mettre execution par des moyens

lØgaux lordre legal du magistrat

Ii reste comme le juge la dit au jury et comme dail

leurs la Couronne elle-mŒme 1a prØtendu au cours du

procŁs que lentente serait devenue illØgale au cours de

lexpØdition Le complot illegal existerait donc et son fait

constitutif serait que les accuses et leurs compagnons au
raient fait feu presque simultanØment pour forcer GuØ
nette arrŒtersa course

Mais la simultanØitØ dc ces coups de feu est-elle bien la

preuve dune resolution concertØe et arrŒtØe agreee par

tous de poser un acte illegal

Je sais bien et la jurisprudence et les auteurs lensei

gnent que le compiot na pas besoin toujours de longue

preparation et mŒmequen certains cas ii peut Œtre Øtabii

par la preuve de certains faits qui dØmontrent chez plu
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sieurs lexistence dune volontØ commune dagir illØgale-
1945

ment Mais là seule resolution eoncertØe quelle soit prØ- SAVARD AND

alable ou sur-le-champ nest pas suffisante pour quil
LIZOTTE

ait crime ii faut le dessein lintention de commettre un TNE KING

acte illegal qui est une circon stance nØcessaire la crimi-Tasthereau

nalitØ Sans doute les trois constables qui poursuivaient

GuØnette se sont entendus tacitement on autrement pour

tirer des coups de feu dans lair ou sur le sol afin dinspi

rer au fugitif iine crainte salutaire qui peut-Œtre ie pousse

rait se livrer aux officiers de justice et cette entente de

mØurejusquici dans les cadres de la stricte lØgalitØ Rien

en effet ne defend des constables autorisØs porter des

armes de sen servir pour les fins que je viens de men
tionner

Dans le cas present six coups ont ØtØ tires en lair et

deux dans la direction du sol Quau cours de la poursuite

dun but legal qui Øtait larrest.ation de GuØnette une

balle ØgarØe ou non provenant de larme de lun des pour

suivants frappe là victime nindique pas quil ait unite

de but entre tous les policiers pour commettre un acte illØ

gal et quil sensuive que par lopØration de larticle 69

paragraphe tous soient tenus responsables de limpru
dence criminelle de lun si imprudence criminelle ii

vØritablement Get acte isolØ ne peut certes pas dØmontrer

un concert de volontØs confondues en une volontØ unique

et commune de commettre un acte illegal et qui marque

rait les actes de tous du sceau de là criminalitØ Tout au

plus indique-t-il lagissernent dune seuie personne qui

sans doute peut Œtre le rØsultat dune negligence ou dune

imprudence criminelle Si Oil rencontre les ØlØmentsyou

lus ou encore le simple rØsultat dun accident qui nentraI

nerait aucuiie responsabilitØ

On sait que le complot criminel est un crime par lui

mŒme quil est compiet et par consequent punissable

sans quil soit nØcessaire de prouver un commencement

dexØcution Le lØgislateur considØrØ là resolution arrŒtØe

de plusieurs personnes de commettre un crime sans meme

que le crime ne soit commis comme une menace envers ia

sociØtØ qui justifie cette derniŁre reprØsentØe par lEtat

de se placer en lØgitime defense et dexercer une action rØ

pressive Si GuØnette neut pas ØtØ frappØ ii est certain
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1945 que personne neüt songØ alors voir dans les actes des

SAVAUD AND constables qui tiraient en lair pour procØder cette arres
LIZOTm

tation les ØlØmentsdu complot Et cependant daprŁs la

THE KING thØorie de la Couronne ces constables eussent ØtØ des cr1-

Taschereau minels qui sans rØaliser la fin poursuivie Øtaient tout de

mŒmetous des conspirateurs qui avaient dans iesprit des

intentions perverses

Or cest parce quon dit au jury quil avait complot

et que larticle 69 sappliquait cest parce quon lui

enseignØ que lacte isolØ de lun entraInait Ia responsa

bilitØ de lautre et cest parce quinstruit quil navait pas

se demander qui avait tire la balle qui cause la mort de

GuØnette que le jurya rendu un verdict que la loi du pays

nautorise pas Cest cette directive erronØe qui nØcessai

rement influence le jury et qui viole totalement la conclu

sion laquelle il est arrivØ Je suis elairement dopinion

comme dailleurs MM les juges Francceur et McDougall

le disent dans leurs notes dissidentes quil ny aucune

preuve qui puisse justifier lexistence dun semblable com

plot criminel et par consequent lapplication de larticle

69 EntachØ dillØgalitØ ce verdict doit Œtre cassØ

Mais la Couronne soutient que mŒme si le verdict est

fflØgal cette Cour ne peut pas accorder plus que les juges

dissidentis de la Cour du Bane du Roi nont accordØ soit

un nouveau procŁs Je ne puis admettre cette prØtention

que je crois erronØe en droit La juridiction de cette Cour

est limitØe Øvidemmentaux questions de droit sur lesquelles

il eu dissidence en Cour du Banc du Roi Lune de

ces dissidences Øtait quon avait donnØ larticle 69 du

Code Criminel une interpretation erronCe et avec cette

dissidence je suis daccord

Mais ii est dii devoir de oette Cour lorsquelle croit une

dissidence bien fondØe de procØder rendre le jugement

qui aurait di Œtre prononcØ et pour atteindre ce but elle

tient ses pouvoirs de article 1024 du Code Criminel qui

dit
1024 La Cour Supreme du Canada Øtablit cet Øgard la rŁgle ou rend

lordonnance qui iui semble juste soit aux fins de co.nfirmer le jugement

de culpabilitØ ou daccorder un nouveau procŁs soit autrement soit aux

fins deccueillir ou de refuser cette demande et Øtablit toutes autres re

gles et dØcerne toutes autres ordonnances nØcessaires pour mettre cette

rŁgle ou ordonnance effet
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La question de droit qui donne juridiction cette Cour 1945

qui en rØalitØ la saisit du litige est formulØepar la Cour du SAVAID AND

Bane du Roi mais le remŁde qui doit Œtre apport quand LIzorrE

elleest jugØe fondØe est du ressort de cette Cour qui peut THE KING

et doit alors rendre lordonnance que requiert la justice TIai
Manchuk The King

Mais si cette Cour ce pouvoir daccorder un remŁde

different de celui que les juges dissidents de la Cour du Bane

du Roi ont cru juste dappliquer doit-elle exercer ce droit

ou ordonner quil ait un nouveau procŁs Je pense bien

quil aurait lieu un nouveau procŁs si la Couronne ayant

soumis la cause quelle prØsentØe au jury avait demandØ

subsidiairement de determiner la cuipabilitØ de lun des

accuses au cas larticle 69 ne sappliquerait pas et

si le juge refusant de donner cette derniŁre instruction

avait avisØ le jury que seul 69 trouvait son application

Alors Øvidemment dans le cas dun acquittement la Cou

ronne nayant pas obtenu la justice quelle demandait au
rait Pu invoquer ce grief et obtenir un nouveau procŁs

Mais dans le cas qui nous occupe cest linverse qui se

prØsente La Couronne soumis que larticle 69 sap
pliquait Cest le fonclement mŒmede sa prØtention toute

sa cause repose sur cette thØorie et cest ainsi quelle

voulu que les accuses fussent jugØs Alors quelle est in

timØe devant cette Cour et quil est Øtabli que sa pre
miŁre tentative dobtenir une condamnation doit nØcessai

rement faillir elle demande la permission de recommen

cer le procŁs en soumettant les mŒmes faits ou des faits

additionnels Ceci ne peut pas ŒtreaccordØ

Les appelants ont ØtØ en peril dØjà au cours de ce pre
mier procŁs us ont ØtØ jugØs devant une cour compØtente

par douze de leurs pairs us ont rØpondu une accusation

lØgalement portØe laquelle us ont plaidØ et le procŁs sest

instruit suivant les soumissions lØgales de la Couronne que
le tribunal acceptees

Ii est Un principe de droit criminel qui date de temps

immØmoriaux quun accuse ne peut pas Œtrein jeopardy
deux fois Cette doctrine est aujourdhui universellement

reconnue et sanctionnØe par les tribunaux MŒmesi per
sonnelleinent jentretenais des doutes sur cette question

je serais lie par une decision de cette Cour rendue ii

1938 S.C.R 341

50138-S
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1945 quelques annØes En effet dans la cause de Wexier

SAVARD AND The King oft la Cour du Banc du Roi de la province
Lizoiis de QuØbec avait ordonnØ un nouveau procŁs cette Cour

THE Kiwa prononcØ lacquittement et le principe pose dans cette

Taschereau j.cause-ià doit nous guider dans la determination de celle-ci

Comme le disait alors Sir Lyman Duff juge en chef
To set aside verdict of acquittal in such circumstances merely

because the case for the Crown might on possible view of the evi

dence have been put upon another footing would it appears to me
introduce most dangerous practice practice not think sanctioned

by the statute

Et le juge Kerwin sexprimait ainsi
The real point for determination is whether after an accused per

son has been tried on charge of murder and acquitted the Crown is

entitled to an order for new txial in order to present an entirely new

case against him
An appeal is given the Crown by the 1930 amendment to section

1013 of the Code on any ground of appeal which involves question

of law alone Assuming without deciding that the pertinent question

here is one of law the Crowns contention is not entitled to prevail

Je crois donc pour les raisons ci-dessus que lappel doit

Œtre maintenu et que les accuses doivent Œtre libØrØs

Etant donnØ cette conclusion laquelle arrive il est mu-

tile de discuter les autres rnoyens dappel qui ont ØtØ sou

levØs

RAND J.The case against the accused advisedly and

exclusively presented by the Crown to the jury was this

the use of arms by way of shooting in the air or the ground

was in the circumstances an unnecessary use of force and

hence illegal from its commencement it constituted an

unlawful common purpose affecting all those taking part

in it and each officer became under ss of sec 69 of the

Criminal Code responsible for the consequences of that

use of arms by the others This dispensed with the con

sideratioæ by the jury of the question whose shot brought

the deceased down

The following excerpts from the address of Crown counsel

summarize the position taken

Admettons pour le tenØfice de Ia discussion et sans rien retirer de ce

que jai dit jusqu present que j.usqu% la fuite de GuØnette tout est

parfait tout est legal GuØuette saute ils partent courir aprŁs cest

ce quils doivent faire ils sont ma-i organisØs parce quils sont mal orga

nisØs ils vont Œtre obliges de sauteir des barriŁres ça ne fait rien cest

leur faute ils sont mal organisØs un moment donnØ ils se metteint

tirer

S-CR 350
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De ce moment Votre Seigneurie tous ensemble et dun commun ac- 1945

card Lizotte et Savard out ensemble dØcidd dans Ia poursuite du but SAsA AND
commun dempioyer des moyens illdgaux Be cc moment-là ii entre LIzonE

eux line entente qiti est devenue une entente illdgale

THE KING

Rand

Cest que cette loi dtØ faite prØcisØment pour prØvoir de ces cas

comme celui qui nous occupe actuellement lorsquune deux trois ott

quatre ersonnes ensemble commettent ensemble dans un mŒme but

des aotes illØgaux us sont tous ensethble responsables des consequences

et cest pour ça quil importe peu de savoir si cest la balle de Lizotte ou

de Savard qui tue

The trial judge adopting the same view instructed the

jury that ss applied and that the only question was

accident or not in the following language
Larticle 69 paragraphe sapplique Je laffirme et jy reviendrai

plus turd

Comme il ne sagissait que dune question de droit qui nintSressait

pas Ic jury parce que je dØciderais ie contraire de la prØtention de Me
Gendron que je voulais simplement discuter ses arguments une traduc

tion eut dtØ inutile et neut servi quà crØer de Ia confusion.

Je nai pas traduit plus loin pour Ic jury que les citations qui ap
puyaient mon opinion Ii est clair que Ia Couronne doit faire sa preuve
Cest une question de faith pour Ic jury de dire si elle la Mit on non
Sil shgissait dun accident ou non

Devez-vous itrouver une difference de responsabilitØ entre laccusd

Savard et laccusØ Lizotte si vous en venez au verdict de cuipabilitd

Me Gendron soutient que cet article ne sapplique pas Malheureu

sement je ne puis partager son opinion Le paragraphe sapplique

Lilldgaliti commence an moment ott us les accuses et le constable Massi

cotte se mirent ensemble tirer dans Ia poursuite de leur but commun
contrairement Ia loi si vous jugez quils abusŁrent de la violence

It is desirable for the moment to consider the circum

stances in relation to sec 69 which is enacted in these

words

69 Accessories principals etcEvery one is party to and guilty

of an offence who

actually commits it

does or omits an act for the purpose of aiding any person to

commit the offence

abets any person in commission of the offence or

counsels or procures any person to commit the offence

5O1383



SUPREME COURT OF CANADA

1945 Common intention by several persons.If several persons form

--i common intention to prosecute any unlawful purpose and to assist

ALARDASW each other therein each of them is party to every offence committed

by any one of them in the prosecution of such common purpose the

THE KING commission of which offence was or ought to have been known to be

RandJ
probable consequence of the prosecution of such common purpose

Two conditions are seen to be essential to bring the com
mon purpose charged within ss that it was unlawful

and that the shooting of the deceased ought to have

been known to be probable consequence of it It was of

course open to the Crown under the first subsection to

seek at the sanm time to hold individually responsible the

officer whose shot actually struck the deceased but that

course as have intimated was deliberately put aside

One reason for this was virtually conceded the conviction

of both accused was sought but as only one bullet struck

the deceased resort to ss was necessary There was also

serious doubt of which one of the eight shots fired from

three guns all of the others admittedly into the air or the

ground was fatal but consistently with the case submitted

the trial judge over the objections of the accused gave the

instruction quoted It was not suggested that the accused

intended to hit the victim and accident might have arisen

from ricochet or from the officer stumbling on uneven

ground at the moment of firing

am unable to agree that in the circumstances the use

made of arms for such purpose could be found or held to

be unlawful Failing illegality it becOmes unnecessary to

consider whether the accused could be found liable for the

death as probable consequence The direction that

ss applied was therefore an error that vitiates the con

viction and it must be set aside

On the argument the actual theory laid before the jury

was confused with purpose formed when the detach

ment set out from Quebec to bring back the deceased if

necessary by the use of any force short of taking life even

though in excess of that permitted by section 43 and

that this involved the accused in the shot that caused the

death The short answer to this is that there was not

tittle of evidence by which it could have been supported

Even less was there any evidence to justify
the view that

such purpose arose at the moment of the firing
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The question now is whether the Crown should be per- 1945

initted to submit to another jury the alternative view SAVARD AND

the individual responsibility of each of the accused which Lizorrz

in the first instance it deliberately refrained from pre-
THE KING

senting In that situation we are governed by judg-

ment of this Court Wexier The King in which

it was laid down that such proceeding would violate

the fundamental right of an accused not to be placed for

second time in jeopardy

It was urged that it would be contrary to the public

interest that such serious consequence through force

excessive in fact in making an arrest should escape pun
ishment do not consider whether or not there was

evidence on which the jury could have found whose act

struck the deceased down The guilt or innocence of

either accused is not relevant to the question with which

am now dealing What the Wexier case declares

is the principle that in such circumstances the interest of

the accused becomes the paramount public interest that

however serious the occurrence may have been and dis

regarding all question of guilt or innocence the Crown

having failed on an hypothesis which was fairly and unex

ceptionably to itself tried out is not on the same set of

facts and on view open to it but rejected on the first

trial to be permitted second opportunity to try to fasten

guilt upon an accused The Wexier case was an

appeal from an acquittal but there is no difference in

principle between that and conviction on basis for

which there was no support in law or in fact And once

it is clear that the conviction cannot stand justice re

quires the same treatment in the one case as in the other

would therefore allow the appeal and quash the con

victions

KELLOCK J.-This is an appeal from the judgment or

order of the Court of Kings Bench appeal side of the

province of Quebec pronounced the 28th day of June

1945 Francceur and Stuart McDougall JJ dissenting

which affirmed the conviction of the appellants upon

charge of manslaughter following the verdict of jury

S.C.R 350 72 C.C.C
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1945 The dissents as expressed in the formal judgment are

SAvAIW AND as follows
LIz0TrE

Messieurs lea j.uges F.rancmur et Stuart McDougall dissidents cas

TE ICING seraent le -verdict annuleraient ies sentences et ordonneraient un nou

veau procŁs le juge Francur pour lea motifs suivant-s

Kellack
Admission au cours du procŁs de preuve illØgale

Direction erronØe en droit sur linterprta-tion de larticle 69 du

Code Criminel

Stuart McDougall dissenting being of opinion that

the verdict should be quashed and that new trial

should be ordered on the grounds
that the accused were deprived of their right to challenge per

emptorily the number of jurors allowed by law

that the presiding judge committed an error in law in instruct

ing the jury that subsection of section 69 of the Criminal

Code applied and

that the presiding judge further erred in Law in instructing the

jury that evidence declared by him to be irrelevant as to the

guilt of the accused would be helpful and could be accepted

by the jury to indicate an atmosphere or climat special sur

rounding the actions of the accused

The facts in substance are as follows

The appellants members of the Royal Canadian

Mounted Police Lizotte being temporary constable had
on May 1944 together with another constable by the

name of Massicotte and corporal DubØ who was in

charge gone to the village of St Lambert for the purpose
of apprehending the deceased Georges GuØnette wanted

on charge of having conspired with others to assist one

HervØ Plante to escape from the custody of peace offi

cer number of unsuccessful attempts some ten or

more it is said had already been made by the police

to effect GuØnettes arrest On the day in question these

constables and others had made an earlier trip to the

village and after having searched the premises of

GuØnettes father unsuccessfully had set out on the return

to their headquarters in the city of Quebec After pro

ceeding some distance toward Quebec the four named con

stables on the orders of DubØ turned about and went back

t-o St Lambert on the chance that GuØnette might have

returned to his fathers house thinking that the coast was

clear The evidence indicates that GuØnette had in fact

at the time of the earlier visit been sleeping in his fathers

barn but had managed to make his escape
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Corporal DubØ stationed Lizotte and Massicotte outside 1945

the house which was situated on the south side of road SAVARD AND

known as the Brochu Road while he himself entered the
LIzorrE

house followed by Savard While so engaged DubØs atten- TEE KIND

tion was attracted by sound upstairs and he proceeded UP Kellock

the stairs just in time to see GuØnette jump from window

on the west side of the house Savard immediately ran

from the house in pursuit of GuØnette who ran westerly

through ploughed field behind the house extending for

distance of 255 feet to fence which separated the GuØ

nette property from the property of Brochu further to the

west Brochus land in turn extends some 300 feet to

river

As Savard pursued GuØnette he says he was losing

ground and as GuØnette ignored his calls to stop he fired

four shots in the air from the 45 calibre revolver which

he carried As GuØnette still paid no attention Savard

says he lowered his revolver and fired toward point

approximately feet to the left of GuØnette with the idea

that thelatter would not only hear the bullet but see the

spurt of the ground where it hit At this time he was some

40 or 50 feet approximately in direct line parallel with

the road behind GuØnette As Savard fired this fifth shot

GuØnette was in the act of jumping the fence into the

Brochu field and as he reached the other side he appeared

to bend forward with the left hand resting on the fence

and the right hand on the ground He then straightened

himself and ransomewhat more toward the south but still

westerly for distance of approximately 78 feet where he

stumbled and fell face down According to the medical

evidence he was then dead or died very shortly thereafter

This evidence by itself might very well indicate that

Savards last bullet had hit GuØnette There is however

other evidence to be mentioned

Lizotte had been stationed on the Brochu Road on the

north side of the GuØnette house while Massicotte had

been instructed by DubØ to post himself in line with

Lizotte on the south side of the house between the house

and the barn to the west Massicotte however testified

that these instructions had been changed and that DubØ

had assigned him to post on the highway running north
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1945 and south east of the GuØnette house This change in in

SAVARD AND structions is however denied by DubØ Lizotte from his
Lizom

post on the Brochu Road on observing GuØnette jump
TaR KING from the window tried to get over the fence separating

Kellock the GuØnette property from the road but was unable to

do so He then ran westerly on the road and fired one shot

in the air and second in westerly direction down the

road toward point he says approximately 30 to 35 feet

to the north of GuØnette and to the latters right After he

had fired these two shots he heard someone behind him

say tire-le shoot at him and then shot from the same

direction At that moment GuØnette who had just jumped

the fence appeared to throw himself backwards The

words tire-le were also heard by Crown witness

Larochelle by name

Massicottes evidence is that from his position on the

highway east of the house he heard Lizotte Łall to some

one and he Massicotte thereupon ran after Savard in the

field in pursuit of GuØnette However three other Crown

witnesses namely Larochelle Brochu and GuØnette Sr

describe having seen two constables running on the

Brochu Road and both DubØ and Savard say they did not

see Massicotte in the field where Savard was This evi

dence of Massicotte was evidently regarded as so unsatis

factory by the Crown that Crown counsel told the jury

that Massicotte had not done as he said but had in fact

run after Lizotte on the Brochu Road Larochelle further

testified that one of the two constables on the Brochu

Road had lowered his arm and fired in GuØnettes direc

tion and that the constable .who did so was wearing

soldiers cap Lizotte was in civilian attire and bare

headed while Massicotte was in uniform There is evi

dence indicating that Lizottes last shot and the shot fired

by Massicotte were both fired after Savards fifth shot

The Crown does not and did not at any time suggest that

the words tire-le were spoken by Lizotte Accordingly

if the evidence of Larochelle and Lizotte is trustworthy

on this point these words must have been spoken by

Massicotte

When the body was examined by doctor at the

hospital to which it was taken by the constables Massi
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cotte asked the doctor to insert at the penetration point 1945

of the wound 45 and 38 calibre bullet This was SAvARD AND

done and the doctor then told Massicotte that it was 38
LIz0TTE

which had caused the death because that bullet could be THE KING

introduced more easily into the opening than the 45 Kelloek

Both Massicotte and Savard carried 45s while Lizotte

carried 38 Before the wound was further examined

the body was placed in the hands of an undertaker who

sewed up the wound One of the Crown experts who

later examined the body stated that in his opinion the

bullet which caused the death was 45 The experi

ment at the hospital by the doctor who first examined

GuØnette was not communicated to Savard who was evi

dently then of the opinion that it was bullet from his

pistol which had caused the death Savard said how

ever that he did not hear the words tire-le nor any

shot after the fifth shot he fired He says that when

he heard shots from the Brochu Road he called out to

stop shooting

The indictment charged that the appellants

Ensemble et illØgalement oausØ des lesions corporelles qui ont en
trainØ mort de Georges Gunette commettant par tin crime dho

micide invülontaire

It becomes important to observe the course followed

by the Crowns advisers and the way in which the case

went to the jury As stated in the factum of the respon

dents Crown counsel at the opening of the trial declared

expressly that the case fell within the provisions of section

69 of the Criminal Code and it is common ground

that the trial judge so charged the jury on the request

of counsel for the Crown so to do The case did not go to

the jury in any sense as within the first subsection of

section 69 As put by counsel for the respondent in their

factum

If there was evidence in the case that Lizotte or Savard had been

provoked advised aided or counselled to commit that offence it

would have been the duty of the judge to quote and explain that first

part of section 69 The judge did not think that the evidence in the

case justified him to do so It is hard to say that he then on this point

made mistake

In the factum of the Crown it is also stated that
It is established that the two accused not only drew their revolvers

and fired pointing them at the sky but also aimed at GuØnette
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1945 The Crown also submitted the evidence of the witness

SAVARD AND Larochelle that constable wearing soldiers hat on the

LIzorra Brochu Road had fired at GuØnette As already mentioned
THE KING this evidence if accepted points to Massicotte Further

Kellock it appears that the bullet which killed GuØnette entered

the body at the left side of the back in the vicinity of the

eleventh rib and passed out at the level of the fourth rib

some six inches higher the direction of the bullet through

the body being to some degree from left to right GuØnette

in jumping the fence had placed one hand on the top rail

and had vaulted over it with his feet toward the Brochu

Road As he reached the ground his back might well have

presented target to person firing from the road quite

consistent with the location and direction of the wound

while it is not so easy perhaps to visualize how such

wound could have been caused by person in the position

of Savard who is said to have been approximately in

straight line behind him It is impossible however to

be dogmatic with regard to this matter and this is the

view taken by St Jacques in the Court of Kings Bench

The uncertainty as to the identity of the person who

had fired the fatal shot only one bullet hit GuØnette

and the fact that the Crown did not suggest that Lizotte

was the person who had used the words tire-le and that

in the opinion of counsel for the Crown there was no

evidence that Lizotte or Savard had been provoked ad

vised aided or counselled to commit the offence were no

doubt the considerations which dictated the course followed

in proceeding under subsection This being the view

of the Crowns advisers that course was not other than

proper The important point is that the decision was

made after full consideration of all the facts and followed

after all the evidence had been placed before the jury

Section 69 reads as follows

Every one is party to and guilty of an offence who

actually commits it

does or omits an act for the purpose of aiding any person to

commit the offence

abets any person in commission of the offence or

counsels or procures any person to commit the offence

If several persons form common intention to prosecute any

unlawful purpose and to assist each other therein each of them is

party to every offence committed by any one of them in the prosecu
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tion of such common purpose the commission of w1iich offence was 1945

or ought to ITave been known to be probable consequence of the

prosecution of such common purpose SA\ARDMD

In the course of his charge the learned trial judge read THE IcING

subsection to the jury and told them in so many words
Kelly.ck

that it applied He did not however explain the subsec-

tion or direct the jury as to how it was to be applied to

the facts in evidence according as they might determine

them to be In so doing he took away from the jury in

my opinion the question as to whether or not there was in

fact any intention such as the subsection requires This

appears more clearly from reading of the charge to

parts of which will presently refer

The theory of the Crown with regard to the application

of subsection was that the appellants had formed

common intention to bring about the arrest of GuØnette

by any means that such intention involved an unlawful

purpose namely the use of force beyond the limits per

mitted by section 43 of the Criminal Code and that it was

immaterial which of them actually fired the fatal shot

as the death of GuØnette was or ought to have been known

to each of them to have been probable consequence

am content without determining the point to deal with

the case on the footing that the subection may be so

applied

The learned trial judge as will appear charged the jury

that there was no illegality in any way attaching to the

appellants conduct that day prior to the moment when

the actual firing commenced The way in which he told

them it was open to them to convict from that time on

shall now refer to Counsel for the Crown who as already

stated requested the learned trial judge to charge on the

basis of subsection did not object to the charge and

must be taken to have been satisfied with it

comi1g to the charge itself quote

Je crois messieurs les jurØs que je vous ai fait un rØsumØ aussi

fidØle que possible de la pre.uve daprŁs lea nombreuses notes que jai prises

et la transcription de ee.rlains tØmoignages Je vous si exposØ le droit

suivent cc que je crois les principes du code son sens littØral le sens

commun et ma facon dc lire la loi Cest le cadre Vous avez par lea

faits le tableau lambiance PatmosphØre le climat en un mot Cest

vous maintenant de decider si les accuses sont coupables ou non Je vous
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1945 le rØpŁte vous Œtes maltres des faits et si j-e les av-ais rapportØs erronØ

SAVARD AND
ment vous nŒtes pas ten-us de me suivre Cest votre opinion cest votre

Lizoirn conviction seuie qui compte

V.- Les accuses ont-ils usan-t de 1-eur discretion suivant les ordres
THE KING

reçus abuse de leur port darmes et aux termes de Ta loi fait un excŁs

Kellock
de violence

Les accuses auraien-t-ils Pu opØrer larrestation comme dit To code

-par des rnoyns raisonnables sans rec-ourir violence Lea accuses an
raient-iJs Pu arrŒter Georges GuØnette ce matia-là en le -cernant se

jetant sur 1-ui sans re-courir aux armes feu Ontils ØtØ nØgligents de

negligence g-rossiŁre et ont-ils dØpassØ les limites de leurs pouvoirs en se

servant de revolvers qui sous prØterte de laverti-r le couchŁrent dans

un champ et 1-ui enlevŁrent Ia vie Georges Guette pouvait-il so sauver

bien loin seul con-tre quatre gendarme-s armØs et qui avaient avec eux

une automobile Si vous en venez -cette conclusion qui eat -uniquement

de votre province vous devez les trouver co-upa-bles suivan-t laccusation

portØe

Les accuses ont-ils fait le-ur devoir sont-ils restØs dana les I-imjtes

de Ia loi non-t-ils commis aucUn excŁs est-ce accident Si vous en

venez cette conclusion vous de-vez los acquitter

Dev-ez-vous trouver iin-e d-iffrence de responsabilitØ entre laccusØ
Savard et laccusØ Lizotte Si VOUS en ye-nez au verdict de eulpabilitØ

Cest ici ue larticle 69 du Code Penal paragraphe son appli

cation

Q-üand plusieurs personnes forment ensemble le projet do faire qu-el

que chose dillØgal et do sentraider dana cc projet chacune delles est

complice de t-oute infraction commise par lune dentre elles dans Ia

poursui-te de leur but com-mun si dies savaien-t ou devaien-t savoir quo la

commission de cette infraction devait Œtre Iaconsequence probable do la

poursuite de leur but commun

Me Gendron soutient que ce-t -article ne sapplique pas Malheu-reu

sement je ne puis partager son opinion La paragraphe sapplique

LillØg-alitØ oommenca au moment oà us lea accuses et le constable Massi

cotte se mire-nt ensemble titer dans la poursuite de leur but commun con
trairement Ia Ioi si vous j-ugez quils nbusŁrent de la violence

Lentente est devenue illØgale au cours de lexØcution touj-ours si los

accuses excØdØrent daprŁs voixs les moyens raisonnables et causŁrent

Ta mortarticie 43 Cr

Ii me reste vous dire que le doute eat en faveur des accuses Qua.nd

on parle do dou-te ii faut que ce soit in do-ute raisonnable qu-i -entraine la

conviction cest-à-dire quo si vous ntes pas logiq-uement et raisonnable

ment aürs quo les accuses soient coupables vo-tre devoir eat de les ac

quitter

In the above the jury are told these four things

If they thought -that the appellants could have

effected the arrest by means other than by resorting to

their firearms or if they were guilty of grOss negligence

in resorting to their firearms they had gone beyond the

limits of section 43 Cr and the jury must find them

guilty as charged
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If in the opinion of the jury the appellants did not 1945

exceed the limits of section 43 Cr then the death was SAVARD AND

an accident and the appellants should be acquitted
LIZ0TTE

They need not differentiate between Savard and Tii KING

Lizotte in arriving at their verdict under above in Kellock

view of the provisions of section 69

The unlawful intention within the meaning of sub

section arose when the appellants started to fire if in

the opinion of the jury the appellants transgressed the

limitsof section 43

Section 43 Cr is as follows

Every one proceeding lawfully to arrest any person for any cause

other than an offence in the last section mentioned is justified if the

person to be arrested takes to flight to avoid arrest in using such force

as may be necessary to prevent his escape by flight unless such escape

can be prevented by reasonable means in less violent manner if such

force is neither intended nr likely to cause death or grevious bodily

harm

Assuming that the theory of the Crown as previously

set out correctly interprets the provisions of section 69

as applied to the case at bar the question of fact as to

the existence or non-existence of common wrongful in

tention on the part of the appellants was completely taken

away from the jury by the charge They were told that

the guilt of the appellants was dependent merely upon

finding that the appellants had gone beyond that which is

authorized by section 43 This of course is completely

erroneous and sufficient of itself to vitiate the verdict and

direct new trial

However in my opinion that course cannot be fol

lowed as it is impossible to find in the record any evi

dence supporting the existence of common intention on

the part of the appellants to prosecute any unlawful

purpose within the meaning of subsection even had

the jury been properly charged The learned trial judge

charged the jury as already mentioned and think cor

rectly that there was no illegality until the instant when

the firing commenced Accepting that agree with the

learned dissenting judges in the court below that there

is nothing from which it can be established that either

of the appellants acted other than independently and as

result of the circumstances which came into existence

during the attempt to make the arrest after GuØnette
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1945 was sighted There is no evidence upon which finding

SAVARD AND could be made that the appellants formed at that time
LIZ0TTE

any common wrongful intention as required by the sub-

THE KiNG section

Kellock Notwithstanding the position taken by the Crown

at the trial Mr Rivard now argues that there was evi

dence showing that the appellants had formed wrongful
intention prior to the time when the firing commenced

For the purpose of showing that the whole expedition

was illegal Mr Rivard endeavoured to make use of the

fact that the constables did not have with them the war
rant for GuØnettes arrest The evidence shows that this

was due to mistake on the part of corporal DubØ Un
known to him the file at headquarters had been split

into two parts and when leaving Quebec for St Lam-

bert he had picked up what he thought was the com
plete file but in fact the papers he took with him did not

include the warrant However the learned trial judge

told the jury that this fact made no difference so far as

the appellants were concerned and specifically instructed

the jury that in considering their verdict they were

to leave the question of the presence or absence of the

warrant out of consideration think the learned trial

judge was right and do not think therefore that any

point can be made of this

Mr Rivard next called our attention to an incident

which occurred when the constables arrived at the vil

lage in the early morning for the first time An automo

bile was observed by DubØ on the village street and he

gave chase After some trouble he managed to place his

car in its path and to bring it to stop Some conver

sation took place between the occupants of the two cars

and one Baillargeon the driver of the other automobile

deposed at the trial that one of the constables he would

not say which in the course of this conversation had

said that if Baillargeon had nOt stopped the constables

would have fired There is some question as to whether

this conversation took place in the presence of Savard

but am content to assume his presence The learned

trial judge charged the jury that legally this conversation

had no bearing upon the case but he told the jury it was

circumstance which might give them what the learned
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trial judge called the atmosphere or special climate 1q45

of the case This was in my opinion highly improper SAVARD AND

The incident was either evidence against the appellants
Lizorn

or it was not There is no middle ground and the charge THR KING

of the learned judge on this point amounts to direction

that the jury might draw conclusion unfavourable to
Kellock

the accused from something which was not evidence at

all In my opinion the learned trial judge was right

in holding that the incident was inadmissible as evidence

Mr Rivard now seeks to use this incident for the pur

pose of his present argument namely as showing the

existence of common wrongful intention on the part

of the appellants prior to the moment of the firing If

in fact such an intention did exist at that time then it

must have been on the part of DubØ and Massicotte and

Savard who were in the police car at the time Lizotte

was not in that car but was in the other car with three

other constah1es in another part of the village If

Lizotte was also party to this wrongful intention surely

the other constables in the car with him must also have

been parties It is remarkable therefore if Mr Rivard

be right why none of the other constables and more

especially why DubØ and Massicotte were not charged

It seems apparent that this contention is an afterthought

It was not entertained by counsel for the Crown when

the case was placed before the jury

Apart from this this incident has no relevancy to the

charge upon which the appellants were tried The argu
ment is that when the remark wa.s made the constables

thought that GuØnette might have been in the Baillargeon

car and if they were willing to fire then it would be some

evidence the weight being for the jury that they intended

to fire later when they did in fact sight GuØnette and he did

not stop The incident is not capable of being the founda

tion for the inference sought to be drawn from it There is

nothing in the remark which would properly permit the

inference to be drawn that the firing would be with intent

to do other than warn and the Crowns case would not be

advanced

The third circumstance relied upon by Mr Rivard in sup

port of his argument was conversation between one of

the constables and Miss Fontaine which took place also



48 SUPREME COURT OF CANADA

1945 at the time of the first visit .to the village while some of

SAvARD AND the constables were engaged in searching the home of

LI.ZoTTs her father Miss Fontaine said to this constable

THE ICING something to the effect that the constables were tiring

Kellock themselves that morning His reply according to Miss

Fontaine was to the effect that that might be so but

others would soon be tired This evidence in my opinion

was also inadmissible Neither of the appellants were

present when the words were spoken The trial judge

permitted this evidence to be given but directed the jury

that it did not incriminate the appellants and that they

were not responsible for something spoken when they

were not present Following this however he told the

jury that it was for them to decide whether or not the

words were spoken This was equally objectionable to

his treatment of the Baillargeon incident Even if it were

the fact that both appellants were present when the state

ment was made the statement in my opinion is com

pletely colourless and innocuous and incapable of being

the basis of an inference that there was on the part of the

appellants any such intention as is now contended for

In my opinion therefore as already stated there is no

evidence anywhere to support the argument now put for

ward by Mr Rivard

When conviction is set aside on the ground that there

is no evidence to support it the result ordinarily is that

the accused must be acquitted The Crown contends

however that there should be new trial and of course

that is what is directed by the dissenting judgments The

argument is that the appellants should now be proceeded

against at the proposed new trial under section 69 or

that additional evidence might be forthcoming which

would make section 69 applicable Such an order

however cannot be made Section 1024 provides

The Supreme Court of Canada shall make such rule or order

thereon either in affirmance of the conviction or for granting new trial

or otherwise or for granbing or refusing such application as the justice

of the ease requires and shall make all other necessary rules and orders

for carrying such rule or order into effect

Unless such appeal is brought on for hearing by the appellant

at the session of the Supreme Court of Canada during which guch

affirmance takes place or the session next thereafter if the said court

is not then in session the appeal shall be held to have been abandoned

unless otherwise ordered by the Supreme Court of Canada or judge

thereof
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The judgment of the Supreme Court of Canada shall in all 1945

cases be final and conclusive

Notwithstanding any royal prerogative or anything contained SABD
AND

in the Interpretation Act or in the Supreme Court Act no appeal shall

be brought in any criminal ease from any judgment or order of any THE KINO

court in Canada to any court of appeal or authority by which in the

United Kingdom appeals or petitions to His Majesty in Council may
Kellock

be heard

While the existence of dissent on question of law

as provided by section 1023 is condition precedent for an

appeal to this Court in case like the present this Court

once seized of the appeal is not limited to the remedy con

sidered appropriate in the dissent but has complete juris

diction to direct the remedywhich in its opinion the Court

appealed from ought to have granted In Manchuk The

King Duff C.J.C said

We have concluded after full consideration that by force of sec

tion 1024 coupled with the enactments of the Supreme Court Act this

Court has authority not only to order new trial or to quash the

conviction and direct the discharge of the prisoner

Having thisjurisdiction then what is the duty of the

Court in the circumstances here present In my opinion

it would not be proper to direct new trial Even had the

jury been properly instructed under section 69 there is

no evidence as have pointed out upon which the appel

lants could properly have been convicted The case was

deliberately proceeded with upon theory of guilt under

certain provision of the Criminal Code which now turns

out to be one which the evidence entirely fails to justify

Merely because it is suggested that upon some other pos
sible view of the evidence some other provision of the Code

might apply which the Crown deliberately determined at

the trial did not apply or because the Crown might be

able to adduce further evidence are not circumstances

which would make it proper to do otherwise than to acquit

think the principle of the decision in Wexler The King

prevents our making such an order as the Crown now

asks for would therefore allow the appeal and quash the

convictions. It is not necessary in the circumstances that

deal with any of the other grounds of dissent

Appeal allowed convictions quashed and

appellants discharged
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